‘ Rye Free
Reading
Room

June 10, 2025
Board of Trustees Meeting
Agenda

Roll Call
Public Comment
Consent Items (Attachments, VOTE)
a. May 2025 minutes - pg. 2
b. May 2025 financials - pg. 5
4. President’s Report
a. Education-pg. 10
5. Information Items
a. Staff Reports (Attachments)
i. Director’'s Report - pg. 12
ii. Adult Report - pg. 13
iii. Teen Report-pg. 14
iv. Children’s Report - pg. 15
b. Auxiliary Board
6. Board Discussion (Attachments)
a. Finance Committee
i. 2026 Budget (Attachment, VOTE) - pg. 16
ii. Endowment Information — pg. 17
b. Building Committee
i. NYS Construction Grant (Attachment, VOTE) - pg. 19
c. Nominating Committee
d. Policy Committee — pg. 20
i. Code of Conduct (Attachment, VOTE) - pg. 21
ii. Art Exhibit Policy (Attachment, VOTE) — pg. 23
e. Strategic Planning Committee
7. Mission Moments - pg. 28

wn =

8. New Business
9. Executive Session
Next meeting dates: Tuesday, September 30 — 7:30 pm

Tuesday, October 28 — 7:30 pm

1061 Boston Post Road, Rye, NY 10580 | 914-967-0480 | www.ryelibrary.org



D

‘ Rye Free
Reading

Room

Minutes of the May 14, 2025
RFRR Board Meeting

Trustees: Lina Eroh, Georgia Dyer, Katie Vernace, Jan Kelsey, Matt Anderson, Kirstin
Bucci, Val Chuebon, Jackie Cohen, Nicole Cunningham, Jennifer McArdle, Jill MacVicar,
Diane Martin, Kathleen Riegelhaupt, Duncan Sibson, Jim Steinthal, Emily Tisdale, Bettina
Funk

Lina Eroh called the meeting to order at 7:35. No one from the public was present.

Consent Agenda

The consent agenda contained the minutes of the March 2025 board meeting and the
March and April 2025 financial statements. Jim made a motion to accept the consent
agenda. Georgia seconded. All approved.

President’s Report
Lina reminded the trustees about the trustee education requirement including the
sexual harassment training.

Staff Reports

Director’s Report

Chris presented the first quarter statistics which were strong. They showed an increase
in circulation and teen card registration. He congratulated Catherine for setting up the
acquisitions module with Baker & Taylor. The new system makes it easier to track titles
and therefore, easier to keep patrons informed. Chris pointed out the current schedule
of trustee training opportunities which was in the meeting packet and he congratulated
the 2 trustees who have already completed their required training.

Adult Services

Catherine reported that in the coming month she will hold staff meetings about how to
make the library extraordinary using the design thinking model. The current show in the
meeting room from the Osborn has been very popular.

Teen Services

Catherine reported that Sara is going to visit all fifth grades to introduce them to the
teen room and services. A reptile program, Ssssnake Break, is coming up. Sara will
have a table at the Rye Town Park Pride Celebration displaying library materials about
programs and services.

1061 Boston Post Road, Rye, NY 10580 | 914-967-0480 | www.ryelibrary.org



D

‘ Rye Free
Reading

Room

Children’s Services

Catherine reported that the music program had to be cancelled because of ill health.
Sean will take over with a story hour. The books for the summer reading program have
been received.

Auxiliary Board

Betina and Meredythe reported that there will be a Taylor Swift impersonator at the
Vehicle Fair. There has been a good response from local merchants for support. Ticket
sales have been going well. The fundraising goal is $25,000. Planning for Casino Night
is in full swing. There will be a VIP ticket available this year. The headcount goal is 350
this year. The high stakes poker will have a cash prize this year.

Finance

Katie reported that the Finance Committee met with the auditors. The auditors
delivered a clean opinion and praised Chris and the team for their preparation. We
spent $.84 on the dollar on programming. The auditors commented that since the
library has a small team, they would recommend more dual approvals. They also
recommended further cyber security training. Lina called for a motion to accept the
audit report. Jan so moved and Katie seconded. All approved. Lina then called for a
motion to approve the 990 report. Katie so moved and Matt seconded. All approved.

Budget Advocacy

Lina reported that there had been good conversations with current officials and council

candidates. All wanted to know how the gap had occurred. Chris’s research noted that
it began after the 2008 crash when all departments were asked to take cuts. The library
was never really recalibrated after that. Chris met with Brian and Joe and explained our
education campaign with the council.

Building Committee

Emilie reported that the committee went over wants and needs. Bathroom renovation is
at the top of the list. Chris wrote an RFP. There is a potential grant for storm windows
and interior window seals. Chris will check out how they look. The City has updated the
language for the Locust Avenue bridge project to include the seawall on both sides of
the brook including the library and the Y.

Nominating Committee

Jacyln reported that the committee is developing a form for trustees which will outline
the role and responsibilities of trustees and include a checklist of relevant skill sets.
Two trustees are rolling off in January.

1061 Boston Post Road, Rye, NY 10580 | 914-967-0480 | www.ryelibrary.org



)

‘ Rye Free
Reading

Room

Policy Committee
Jim reported that there were a few policies to review this year: the art exhibit policy;
code of conduct and workplace violence prevention policy.

Strategic Planning

Matt reported that the planning is based on three pillars: community, family and literacy.
A new survey is being prepared. There was a discussion of the three questions the
committee posed to the board: what are our significant challenges/opportunities over
the next 5 years; how better to serve the community; and key priorities for allocation of
resources.

Mission Moments
Chris pointed out 2 upcoming events. On June 12, in collaboration with SPRYE, there is
a program about Paul Revere. The exhibit “The Bias Inside Us” is opening on June 28.

Lina thanked the committees for their work. There being no further business, she called

for a motion to adjourn. Jan so moved and Katie seconded. All approved. The meeting
was adjourned at 8:57.

Action : The Board approve the May meeting minutes

1061 Boston Post Road, Rye, NY 10580 | 914-967-0480 | www.ryelibrary.org



‘ Rye Free
Reading
Room

May Financials

May income reflects the early arrival of a major annual campaign gift of $50,000. It's
generally received in the fall.

In expenses, ebook ordering is showing behind budget, as bills have been received later
and later from Overdrive.

In library operations, budget is ahead due to the timing of operated systems, auditing,
and printing. Those will level out as the year end approaches.

In building operations, expenses are under budget when the capital projects transfer is
backed out. Contracted services will continue to run behind budget, as we have
replaced the cleaning company with the library building manager. The contracted
services savings will be offset with the additional expenses in personnel.

In personnel, the salaries line reflects the retroactive payments to union employees,
now that the contract has been approved by all parties. That line will be trending above
budget, but will be offset with lower expenses in the contracted service line.

Action : The Board accept the May financial statements

1061 Boston Post Road, Rye, NY 10580 | 914-967-0480 | www.ryelibrary.org



Rye Free
Reading

| {

Room
Rye Free Reading Room
Income and Expense Report
For 5 Months Ending May 31, 2025
Current Month 2025YTD 2025YTD 2025
2025 Actual Budget Budget

Income
City of Rye 5 - 8 713500 % 713500 § 1,427,000
Annual Campaign 5 52865 5 111375 % 112500 5 270,000
Miscellaneocus Income 13 1884 & 10,107 % 14583 & 35,000
Osborn Branch Library 5 - 5 15692 5 2111 5§ 53,066
Awdliary Board Transfer s - s - 5 - 5 80,000
Endowment Transfer 5 - 5 - ] - 5 110,000

$ 54745 § 850574 § 862694 5 1975066
Expense
Library Materials
Books $ TA45 5 38860 % 37p35 S 90325
Audio Visual 3 802§ 5011 % 10208 $ 24,500
Periodicals 5 Lir v 5750 § 13,800
Programs 5 3aag 5 Tan % 5625 § 13,500
Ebocks/ Binding H 501 % 7276 % 17,083 § 41,000

5 12338 5 62862 5 78302 § 183,125
Library Operations
Supplies 5 907 5 7281 % 6363 § 15270
Equipment & Systems - New 5 - 5 1667 § 4,000
Equipment & Systems - Maintenance s - 5 1875 &5 4,500
Automated Systems 5 1206 5 43297 5 L b 88,250
Telephone 5 615 % 2839 % 2917 § 7,000
Postage 5 36 5 4418 5 4167 § 10,000
Printing & Publicity s 280 5 15154 5 12500 5 30,000
Auditing 5 2055 % 23202 5 10417 % 25,000
Legal Services 5 - 3 325 % &3 3 2,000
Interest 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 -
Transfer to Designated Account 5 - s - 5 - 5 -
Miscellaneous 5 [ 4777 5 3250 5 7800

5 6041 § 101,113 § 80758 § 193,820
Building Operations
Heat 5 EE 19022 % w007 § 25,000
Light & Power 5 2305 % 15669 % 14375 § 34,500
‘Water & Sewer 5 6388 5 JAlE 5 4167 § 10,000
Fixtures, Furnishings & Equipment s Frli 215 5 2083 5 5,000
Building Supplies 5 1915 % 3883 5 5000 § 12,000
Contracted Services 13 133 % 18416 % 0000 5 72,000
Repairs & Maintenance 5 1135 § 1788 5§ 7500 5 18,000
Insurance 5 724 8 14565 15032 § 38,07
Capital Projects Fund Transfer 5 - 5 1000000 5 - 5 -
Miscellaneous 5 -8 400 % - % -

5 19886 5 183376 5 BRS5TI 5 212576
Personnel
Salaries 5 840§ A58816 § 444609 5 1067061
Social Security 5 1078 5 33472 5 34013 5§ 81,530
Retirement 5 - 8 - % 52762 S 126529
Medical Insurance 5 2929 § 25080 5 33258 § 79,820
Other Insurance 13 - 13 [2437) % 6667 5 16,000
Payroll Services 5 5 5 4243 5 297 5§ 7,000
Staff Development s s 5 3488 § 1350 § 3,000
Miscellaneous 5 - 5 - ] -

$ 105532 § Sapal % 575475 § 1381040
Total Income 5 54748 % 850674 5 BE268 5 1,575,066
Total Expense 5 143856 § BE99G2 & 821,108 § 1,570,661
Net Receipts {Expense) 5 (89,107} $ (19318) $ 41585 § A4405

1061 Boston Post Road, Rye, NY 10580 | 914-967-0480

| www.ryelibrary.org



)

‘ Rye Free
Reading

Room
Rye Free Reading Room
Annual Campaign
May 2025 ¥TD
Donations to the Current Annual Campaign 2022 2023 2024 2025
Donations received & deposited in JAN 85,387 32,982 3,137 18,105
FEB 5,531 1,446 1,255 14,900
MAR 5,764 2,953 6,143 2,295
APR 3,659 4,214 15,077 2,279
MAY 5989 2,689 3,311 52,865
JUN 4,953 1,736 7,783
JuL 811 9,500 69,110
AUG 203 1,032 10,330
SEP 16,977 16,056 9,775
ocT 81,183 134,064 32,760
NOV 67,548 35,114 76,764
DEC 66,435 64,832 87,511
Total 344,440 306,618 322,956 90,444
Donations to Previous or Subsequent Annual Campaigns
Donations to prior Annual Campaigns 85,287 30,883 12,738 20,931
Donations to the subsequent Annual Campaign 0 0 0 -
Sub-total 85,287 30,883 12,738 20,931

1061 Boston Post Road, Rye, NY 10580 | 914-967-0480 | www.ryelibrary.org



Rye Free
Reading

Room
Rye Free Reading Room
Endowment Report
May 2025

Endowmant Inflows/Qutflows: ¥TD 2025 YTD 2024 ¥TD 2023 ¥TD 2022 ¥TD 2021
Beg of Parod (Market Valua) 2221128 2,160,398 2,109,482 2,388 851 2,188 B2B
Expanses (7.646) (15,538) (14,636) {14,834) (15,674)
Transfar taffram Other Funds 0 (101,387) (105,000) (101,616) (95,000)
Intarest & Dividend Incoma 16,387 60,868 53,480 57,746 63,379
Appraciation 17.291 116,785 117.063 (220,654) 247 318
End of Pariod Bal (Market Valua) 2,247 168 2,221,126 2,160,398 2,108 482 2,388,851
Endowment Performance 1.17% T.50% T.39% -T.44% 13.48%
Retum of S&P 500 1.06% 25.02% 26.29% =1811% 2B.71%
Retum of Barclays Bloombarg Aggregate Bond Index 2.45% 1.25% 5.53% -13.01% -1.54%
Silvercrast: ¥TD 2025 YTD 2024 ¥TD 2023 ¥TD 2022 ¥TD 2021
Cash & Equivalants 4% 74,049 111,218 (27,006) 29,727 12,815
Fixed Incoma 32% 651,044 668,740 TGO 448 775,964 BB4 363
Equitias 60% 1,213,057 1,157,022 1,166,785 1,046,548 1,170 444
Gaold 2% 30,360 24,213 18,117 16,964 17,086
Othar 2% 48,624 31,358 30,5673 46,723 71.182
Silvercrest Total 100% 2,017,134 1,993,551 1,949 818 1,815,926 2,155,900

Endowment Braakdown at: Pamanantly Temp Restrictad Total

¥TD 2025 Restricted & Board Designated

Shea 41,680 54,651 96,331

Floras 76,650 1,364 TE8014

Balf 27,390 28,300 55,690

Sivarcrast T45 086 1,272,048 2,017,134

E B90 BO6 1,356,362 2,247 168

1061 Boston Post Road, Rye, NY 10580 | 914-967-0480 | www.ryelibrary.org



Rye Free
Reading

Room
Rye Free Reading Room- Combined Report
For 5 Months Ending May 31, 2025
Unrestricted Temp. Restricted Endowment and
(Operating) (D Board Restricted Combined
Income
City of Rye 713,500 § 713,500
Annual Campaign 111,375 o o 111,375
Contribution 40,003 o 40,003
Grants L1} L1}
Osborn Branch Library 15,692 o o 15,692
Income from Invested and Equity 3,988 16,397 20,385
Miscellaneous 10,107 o o 10,107
Transfer: Auxiliary to Operating 0 0
Transfer: Operating to Designated - (1] (1]
Transfer: Operating to Cap Projects -100,000 100,000 0 -
750,674 143,991 16,397 911,062
Transfer: Auxiliary to Operating 0 0 0
Transfer: Endowment to Operating 0 0 0 -
Appreciation/Depreciation 0 17,291 17,291
Total Funds 750,674 143,991 33,688 928,353
Expense
Library Materials
Books 38,860 3,172 o 42,032
Audio Visual 5011 o o 5,011
Periodicals 3,794 2,000 o 5,794
Programs 7,921 55,942 o 63,863
Online Resources 501 o o 501
Miseellaneous 6,775 0 0 6,775
62,862 61,114 0 123,976
Library Operations
Supplies 7,281 762 0 8,043
Equipment & Systems - New 0 0 0
Equipment & Systems - Maintenance 0 0 0 -
Automated Systems 43,297 0 0 43,297
Telephone 2,639 0 0 2,639
Postage 4,418 o o 4,418
Printing & Publicity 15,154 1,369 o 16,523
Auditing 23,222 o o 23,222
Interest o o o
Legal Services 325 (1] (1] 325
Miscellaneous 4,777 0 0 4,777
101,113 2,131 o 103,244
Building Operations
Heat 19,022 1] o 19,022
Light & Power 15,669 0 0 15,669
‘Water & Sewer 7418 (1] [1] 7,418
Fixtures, Furnishings & Equipment 2,215 40,081 0 42,296
Building Supplies 3,883 0 0 3,883
Contracted Services 18,416 0 0 18,416
Repairs & Maintenance 1,788 33,140 0 34,928
Insurance 14,565 (1] (1] 14,565
Miscellaneous 400 0 7,646 8,046
83,376 73,221 7,646 164,243
Personnel
Salaries 458,816 o o 458,816
Social Security 33,472 0 0 33,472
Retirement o o o
Medical Insurance 25,060 0 0 25,060
Other Insurance -2,437 0 0 (2,437)
Payroll Services 4,243 (1] (1] 4,243
Staff Development 3,488 0 0 3,488
Miscellaneous o o o -
522,641 o o 522,641
Total Expense 769,992 136,466 7,646 914,104
Net Receipts/Expenses -19,318 7,525 26,042 14,249
Prior Year Funds 273,266 328,664 2,109,492 2,711,422
Balance 253,948 336,189 2,135,534 2,725,671

1061 Boston Post Road, Rye, NY 10580 | 914-967-0480

| www.ryelibrary.org



D

‘ Rye Free
Reading

Room

Trustee Education

Trustees are required to complete an annual sexual harassment prevention training.

You may credit any interactive sexual harassment prevention training course taken this

year to fulfill this requirement. Contact Chris to self-attest, or submit a certificate of
completion.

Please note this training does not count towards the 2 hour continuing education
requirement.

NYC Sexual Harassment Prevention Training -
https://www.nyc.gov/site/cchr/law/sexual-harassment-training.page

Upcoming opportunities for 2025

July 15, 2025, 5:00 PM-6:30 PM - Trustee Handbook Book Club: Recruiting &
Retaining Quality Staff | REGISTER

November 18, 2025, 5:00 PM-6:30 PM — Trustee Handbook Book Club — Next Level
Trusteeship: Building an Effective and Impactful Board Culture | REGISTER

More information about each of the 2025 sessions will be available on the Trustee
Handbook Book Club website at https://midhudson.org/trusteebookclub/. Archived
recordings at https://midhudson.org/trustee-handbook-book-club-archive/.

Archived recordings that might be of particular interest include:

Governance Structure: The Role of Board Officers and Board Committees
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BfSN_rzqo_c

The Board-Director Relationship (Tuesday, April 18, 2023)
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=5wrOonOMAoo

Strategic Planning | Tuesday, August 15, 2023)
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=D1a_gAKhlkk

1061 Boston Post Road, Rye, NY 10580 | 914-967-0480 | www.ryelibrary.org

10


https://www.nyc.gov/site/cchr/law/sexual-harassment-training.page
https://us06web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_KJMvwW4xSU-k6EVJ8GXIWg
https://us06web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_mU-JeZ7eTuKnPCX3nTorsw
https://midhudson.org/trusteebookclub/
https://midhudson.org/trustee-handbook-book-club-archive/
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BfSN_rzqo_c
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=5wr0onOMAoo
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=D1a_qAKhlkk

‘ Rye Free
Reading
Room

Pre-recorded Education Opportunities for 2025
e Pre-recorded webinars from New York State available at the link below.
o https://www.nysl.nysed.gov/libdev/trustees/webinars.htm

e Pre-recorded videos from Trustee Handbook Club discussion series from the Mid
Hudson Library System:

o https://youtube.com/playlist?list=PLd_RtTwgkH2bNgVIcb1pWaTSa7dZRf
PbJ&feature=shared

e Pre-recorded videos from Trustee Handbook Club discussion series from
WebJunction

o https://www.nysl.nysed.gov/libdev/webjunction/index.html

11

1061 Boston Post Road, Rye, NY 10580 | 914-967-0480 | www.ryelibrary.org



)

‘ Rye Free
Reading

Room

Director’s Report

LIBRARY OPERATIONS:
e Budget
o Finalized 2026 budget draft
e Strategic Planning
o Launched evergreen program feedback form for public programs
o Launched 5 minute user feedback survey
o Reviewed staff feedback on front line trends

FUNDRAISING, OUTREACH & COMMUNITY RELATIONS:

e Annual Campaign
o Completed outreach to major donors for National Library Week
o Outlined 2025 annual campaign messaging

e Community Relations
o Attended My Sister’s Place gala recognizing Lisa Olney, Osborn librarian
o Attended Rye non-profit leaders conversation
o Conducted elected official outreach for Bias inside Us exhibit

e Fundraising
o Assisted with Vehicle Fair 2025
o Completed Casino Night 2025 website and ticket sales page
o Secured Osborn annual sponsorship

BUILDING & GROUNDS:
e Reviewed updated bathroom RFP submissions
e Received new folding tables for meeting room

STAFF & PERSONNEL
e Attended Al policy development program for libraries
e Attended Evergreen systems update training for reporting

12

1061 Boston Post Road, Rye, NY 10580 | 914-967-0480 | www.ryelibrary.org



‘ Rye Free
Reading
Room

Adult Services

PROGRAMMING:

e The Writer's Room — Biweekly
e Spice Club Kit - Sumac - Bimonthly

COMMUNITY OUTREACH

e Strategic Priority 1: Independent Reading Services

e Upcoming Read in Rye: SPYRE and the Rye Free Reading Room welcome
bestselling author and journalist Kostya Kennedy for an examination of the truth
and legend of Paul Revere's midnight ride.

« Read in Rye: Read in Rye : Bill Cusano

e Strategic Priority 4: Community Interest Advancement
e Program — Clarke’s Auction Gallery Antique Roadshow

e Provided meeting/program/rental space for: 2 Private Rentals, Junior League of
Westchester on the Sound, Rye Sustainability Committee, Rye Tri

e Outside Book Clubs
o Bookworms, Crossroads, Rye Woman'’s Club, Rye YMCA Booked at the Y,
Rye Recreation Seniors Book Club - Facilitated by RFRR librarians

SPACE BOOKINGS
e Local History Room — 60
e Left Study Room - 42
e Right Study Room - 42

ONE ON ONE APPOINTMENTS
e Notary Appointments — 21
e Technology Training - 7

13

1061 Boston Post Road, Rye, NY 10580 | 914-967-0480 | www.ryelibrary.org



)

‘ Rye Free
Reading

Room

Teen Services

PROGRAMMING AND DISPLAYS:
Rising Seniors: Creating a Compelling College Application this Summer, Teen
Movie - Grease Sing-a-long, In Search of Sanity: How to Approach College
Admissions in 2025, International Snack Club, Mario Kart Partner Challenge,
Teen Cooking, Teen Candle Making

Strateqgic Goals - #1 Independent Reading
e Summer Reading preparation

Strategic Goals - #2 Community Interest Advancement
o Table at the Rye Pride celebration

o Summer Reading Kick off - Bubble Tie-Dye Bandanas

» Visits to all three elementary school’s fifth grade classes to discuss resources at
the library, moving into the Teen Room and Summer Reading

14

1061 Boston Post Road, Rye, NY 10580 | 914-967-0480 | www.ryelibrary.org



)

‘ Rye Free
Reading

Room

Children’s Services

Community Interest Advancement
e Our story programs continue for all of our youngest patrons. Tales for Tots on

Monday (now with Suzy Sunshine until Lisa’s return from Parental Leave), Robert
the Guitar Guy on Tuesdays, Wiggle Giggle on Wednesdays, Bilingual Music on
Thursdays (with Sam providing Storytime until Marilyn heals from her leg
surgery), and Creative Movement Storytime on Fridays. All are well attended.

Independent Reading and Reading Drop-off Prevention
. Books and Beyond for 3'-5™ graders is finishing up the school year in the

Thursday evening timeslot. We had 5 kids join us this month to discuss Flora and
Ulysses and have one more session in June before we break for the summer.

Outreach
e All Summer Reading marketing has successfully gone out to the three
elementary schools.

Other
e New shelving is currently being built in the children’s room that will help us
improve the visibility and size of our Picture Book and Young Reader collections.

15

1061 Boston Post Road, Rye, NY 10580 | 914-967-0480 | www.ryelibrary.org



‘ Rye Free
Reading
Room

2026 Budget Request

The library funding request to the city will be due in August. The Board President,
Treasurer, and director work on the submission letter, which in this case, will reflect the
budget advocacy work that has been done in the first half of the year. The Board
authorizes the executive committee to submit the letter, and approves any necessary
changes in the December meeting, once city funding is finalized.

The 2026 funding request for the city is $1,663,000, a 14.2% increase over 2025. This
reflects the $171,000 operating gap, as well $65,000 for the 2026 personnel and
building cost increases.

Action : The Board authorize the executive committee to submit the funding
request to the City of Rye for the 2026 City budgeting process.

16

1061 Boston Post Road, Rye, NY 10580 | 914-967-0480 | www.ryelibrary.org



‘ Rye Free
Reading
Room

Finance Committee Meeting
June 5th, 2025

RFRR: Katie Vernance, Kirstin Bucci, Val Chuebon, Kathleen Riegelhauplt, Chris
Shoemaker

Guest :Carolin Newland, Silvercrest

Carolin led a review of the Silvercrest endowment allocation. The portfolio is currently
overweighted in equities at 62.5%, while the financial policy allows for a maximum of
60%. 32.3% is in the fixed income portfolio, with 3.7% in cash and the remaining in gold
and REIT. Silvercrest is monitoring the ongoing market volatility, and notes that
economic policies have been paused or delayed due to market reactions. They forecast
much the same response to be happening. Lower interest rates are not expected until
the fall, and there are a few signs of caution with inflation and tariffs, a softening of the
job market, and signs of a slowing economy. Their expectation is for small and medium
cap activities to occur through mergers and acquisitions, due to the changed regulatory
environment, though that behavior has yet top play out. Overall, the library investment
portfolio is still protective, with a dividend yield focus. Only 2.8% of the equity portfolio
is in large cap, and Silvercrest recommended an increase of 10% for a growth focus.
Fixed income is built around intermediate maturity — around 7 years, and is actively
managed by Silvercrest.

After Carolin left the call, the committee discussed raising the large cap percentage,
and the recommendation was to increase from 2.8% to 5%.

The committee reviewed the flood insurance renewal. Maintaining the baseline
coverage of $333,000 for the building and $290,000 for the contents is $9,310.
Increasing coverage to $366,000 for the building and $305,000 for the contents is
$9,539. The premium last year was $7,900, so these represent a 15% or 17% increase
respectively. While the limitations on what the insurance would cover for contents
hinders us somewhat, given the trajectory of building costs, having $33,000 more in
coverage for rebuilding costs for $229 seems to be a good deal. The committee
recommended increasing coverage, and paying the higher premium.

The committee recommends the City funding request go in at the full funding gap,
$1,663,000. Funds from the annual campaign that were covering the gap would be
reallocated, with $60,000 for capital projects, $50,000 for programming, $40,000 for
digital collections, and $16,000 for print collections.

17

1061 Boston Post Road, Rye, NY 10580 | 914-967-0480 | www.ryelibrary.org



‘ Rye Free
Reading
Room

2025 2026
Adopted Draft
INCOME
City of Rye $1,427,000 $1,663,000
Annual Campaign 270,000 270,000
Osborne Branch Library 60,333 65,203
Miscellaneous Income 35,000 35,000
Aux Board Transfer 80,000 80,000
Transfer from Endowments 110,000 110,000
$ 1,982,333 $ 2,223,203
2025 2026
Draft
MATERIALS
Books S 88,885 S 104,885 $16,000 for print books
Audio Visual 25,940 25,940
Periodicals 12,900 12,900
Programs 13,500 63,500 $50,000 for programs
Online Resources 40,900 80,900 $40,000 for ebooks
Miscellaneous 100 100
182,225 288,225
LIBRARY OPERATIONS
Supplies 15,000 15,000
Equipment & Systems - New 4,000 4,000
Equipment & Systems - Maintenance 4,500 4,500
Automated Systems 88,250 88,250
Telephone 7,000 7,000
Postage 10,000 10,000
Printing & Publicity 30,000 30,000
Auditing 25,000 25,000
Legal Services 2,000 2,000
Capital Planning 0 60,000 $60,000 for building improvements
Miscellaneous 7,800 7,800
193,550 253,550
BUILDING OPERATIONS
Heat 25,000 26,000
Light & Power 34,500 34,500
Water & Sewer 10,000 10,500
Fixtures, Furnishings & Equipment 5,000 5,000
Supplies 12,000 12,000
Contracted Services 36,000 37,000
Maintenance & Repairs 18,000 18,000
Insurance 36,076 37,850
176,576 180,850
Personnel
Salaries 1,095,620 1,136,696
Social Security 84,322 87,494
Other Personnel Expense 0 0
Retirement 130,757 151,902
Medical Insurance 87,898 93,634
Other Insurance 16,000 16,000
Payroll Services 7,000 7,000
Staff Development 3,000 3,000

$  1,424597 $ 1495726
Trasnfer to Designated
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE [$ 1976948 [$ 2,218,351

Surplus/Deficit S 5,385 5 4,852

1061 Boston Post Road, Rye, NY 10580 | 914-967-0480 | www.ryelibrary.org



‘ Rye Free
Reading
Room

Building Committee

The 2026 NYS construct grant cycle is open, and the Rye Free Reading Room is eligible
to submit a request. Projects must address, cost savings, customer service, energy
efficiency, increased capacity, or public safety.

The restroom refresh project would not qualify, as the facilities are remaining in the
same footprint, and the plumbing fixtures are already water saving.

Due to delays with the window insert vendor, the committee has not had time to inspect
any samples.

The library has received quotes for both the fire alarm system and the security alarm
system updates, and the cost for those projects is $90,000. Both systems would be
updated with mobile dialing, which will allow the library to eliminate copper phone lines,
and allow the system to reduce false alarms through different fault level settings. Staff
will still be notified, but emergency services will not be dispatched. That results in
additional cost savings, while increasing protection to the library building ands users.

Action : The Board approve up to $45,000 in funds from the capital
projects fund, for matching funds for the 2026 NYS construction Grant
application, the May financial statements.

19

1061 Boston Post Road, Rye, NY 10580 | 914-967-0480 | www.ryelibrary.org



‘ Rye Free
Reading
Room

Policy Review Committee

The Policy Review committee has completed the review of the Code of Conduct and the
Art Exhibit policy.

The code of conduct now explicitly forbids weapons on library property, prohibits use of
controlled substances, and has a note about the limited public forum nature of the
library, which allows some restrictions on behaviors that would otherwise be allowed in
public common spaces.

The art exhibit policy highlights the limits of the library insurance, and allows for the

rejection of exhibits based on safety and the broad audiences who use the library
meeting room.

Action : The Board approve the Code of Conduct

Action : The Board approve the Arty Exhibit Policy

20

1061 Boston Post Road, Rye, NY 10580 | 914-967-0480 | www.ryelibrary.org



D

‘ Rye Free
Reading

Room

Code of Conduct

The Rye Free Reading Room is committed to providing a safe and welcoming
atmosphere in which people can use the Library and its resources. This Code of
Conduct outlines acceptable behavior for patrons of the Library, with respect to the
rights of other patrons and the staff.

The Library operates as a shared space in use by a wide range of people with different
experiences, backgrounds, needs, and purposes. Patrons are expected to treat others
with respect. The Library is a “limited public forum” under law and may reasonably
restrict the exercise of free speech, particularly when the conduct may be disruptive to
or interfere with other patrons or the staff.

In general, any behavior is prohibited that violates any federal, state, local or other
applicable law, ordinance or regulation, or interferes with the appropriate use and
enjoyment of the Library by others, or interferes with a Library employee’s performance
of his or her duties.

e Engaging in conduct that disrupts or interferes with the normal operation of the
Library, or that disturbs Library visitors or staff, is not permitted.

e Damaging, destroying, misusing, or moving furniture, fixtures, equipment, or
property belonging to the Library is not permitted. This includes disabling or
unplugging Library equipment, changing hardware or software, or using a
Library computer for purposes not designated by the Library.

e Misuse of the restrooms is not permitted.

e Interfering with, harassing, or intimidating other patrons, Library staff or Library
volunteers is unacceptable.

¢ Committing acts of violence, threats of violence, bullying, name-calling, sexual
harassment, and unwanted or inappropriate touching in unacceptable.

e Smoking or other use of tobacco products, such as vaping, inside Library
buildings or within 100 feet of Library property is not allowed.

e The use and handling of other controlled substances is not allowed on Library
property.

e Firearms and any other types of weapons on Library property are prohibited.

e Library materials must be checked out to a Library patron before being
removed from the Library.

e Loud talking and the use of cell phones, personal audio equipment and other
electronic devices without earphones are to be limited to the lobby area or
enclosed stairs. Quiet must be maintained in the designated quiet areas.

21

1061 Boston Post Road, Rye, NY 10580 | 914-967-0480 | www.ryelibrary.org



‘ Rye Free
Reading
Room

e The use of skates, skateboards, scooters, or bicycles is not permitted on
Library property.

e Shoes and shirts must be worn at all times.

e Responsible consumption of individually packaged food and drinks is allowed;
full meals are allowed only as part of programs and events held in the Meeting
Room. Pungent foods should be in covered containers only. Consumption of
alcohol, other than for Library sponsored events and in designated areas on
Library premises, is not permitted on Library property.

e The Library is not responsible for children who are left unattended on Library
premises. Unattended children are children of any age who are apparently
unaccompanied by a parent, guardian, and/or responsible caregiver in the
Library. Parents, guardians and/or caregivers are solely responsible for the
safety and behavior of their children. Children under the age of seven must be
accompanied by a responsible adult or teenager at all times.

e Except for events and sales conducted by the Library, solicitations for
charitable, religious or other purpose, selling of tickets or merchandise of any
kind or obtaining signatures on petitions and surveying Library patrons are only
permitted on Library premises with prior approval of the Director.

e To respect patron privacy, filming, recording or streaming is not allowed except
by pre-arrangement. This is to ensure only consenting library users are
included in the recording and routine operations are not disturbed.

The above Code of Conduct is not intended to be a complete list of expected behavior.
The Library Director, or the Director’s designee, is authorized to take appropriate action
to interpret and enforce this policy in the best interest of Library patrons and staff.

Patrons who do not comply with any reasonable request of the staff may be asked to
leave the Library premises. Continued noncompliance may result in action ranging from
suspension to termination of Library privileges and denial of access to the Library
premises.

22

1061 Boston Post Road, Rye, NY 10580 | 914-967-0480 | www.ryelibrary.org



‘ Rye Free
Reading
Room

Art Exhibit Policy

The Rye Free Reading Room supports its mission to serve as a dynamic gathering place
and center for lifelong learning for Rye residents of all ages and interests by making
exhibit space available to artists that provide opportunities for cultural enrichment,
entertainment, literacy support and community connection. This Art Exhibit Policy
outlines how exhibits are selected and presented at the Library.

Anyone interested in presenting an exhibit may submit a proposal that will be reviewed
by the Director or the Director’s designee according to the following criteria:

. Quality and aesthetic value

. Uniqueness of materials

o Space requirements

. Artists background/qualifications in content area

. Relevance/appropriateness of exhibit to RFRR’s mission

o Staff time

The Library’s philosophy of open access to information and ideas extends to art
exhibits. Because Library exhibition spaces are not exclusively gallery spaces, all
displays must be suitable for view by the broad community or people who visit the
Library. No exhibit or artwork shall be permitted which poses the imminent threat of
public unrest or violence. No exhibit or artwork shall be permitted that endangers
patrons, staff, facilities, or otherwise materially interferes with operations of the Library.
The installation of an exhibit does not constitute an endorsement of the content of the
exhibit or the views expressed by the artist(s).

The Library draws upon community resources in developing exhibits and attempts to
partner with other community organizations, educational, cultural, and literary
institutions or individuals to present and/or co-sponsor art exhibits. Staff may work with
an individual artist or a community organization in developing an exhibit.

23

1061 Boston Post Road, Rye, NY 10580 | 914-967-0480 | www.ryelibrary.org



)

‘ Rye Free
Reading

Room

The Library charges a $100 fee for an exhibit. The Board of Trustees authorizes the
Library Director to waive that fee at his or her discretion. The exhibit fee must be paid in
advance of the installation of the art exhibit. The exhibit fee will be credited towards any
commission sates total due. While the Library does not emphasize the commercial
aspects of its exhibits, artists may sell their work as part of the installation. The Library
receives a 20% commission on each sale.

External organizations or individuals partnering with the Library on exhibits must
coordinate marketing efforts with the Library’s staff and secure staff approval before
distributing any promotional materials. The Library reserves the right to revise and edit
any copy provided by an artist as appropriate for the Library’s various promotional
outlets.

All exhibits at the Library are open to the public and offered free of charge.

24

1061 Boston Post Road, Rye, NY 10580 | 914-967-0480 | www.ryelibrary.org



‘ Rye Free
Reading
Room

Art Exhibit Agreement

Artist:

Medium of Work:

Title/Description of Work:

Total Value of Items Exhibited:

The artist is required to furnish a list of the pieces in the show. Please attach the list
to this form or submit it on the day of installation. Rye Free Reading Room'’s
insurance covers exhibitions up to a maximum of $10,000. By agreeing to these
terms, you acknowledge this limit on any recovery in connection with your work, and
that you will not display works valued in excess of that amount in the Exhibit.

Schedule

The following dates are required for Rye Free Reading Room to schedule staff and
space use. Please adhere to the scheduled times. The Meeting Room is frequently in
use for programs.

Installation: Reception: Removal:

The Rye Free Reading Room takes no responsibility for any pieces left in the building
after the close of business on the date you are scheduled to remove them.

o Any reception must end and the room must be cleaned up and empty
by the time agreed to herein.

o The attached Procedures are incorporated into this agreement.

For the Library Date Artist Date

25

1061 Boston Post Road, Rye, NY 10580 | 914-967-0480 | www.ryelibrary.org



‘ Rye Free
Reading
Room

PROCEDURES FOR ART EXHIBITIONS

The Library’s primary exhibition space is the Meeting Room on the Main Floor. The
room itself has windows on two walls, facing north and east. There is access to an
elevator on the south (parking lot) side of the building to help transport artworks into
the building and a kitchen/pantry area if you are planning a reception.

SCHEDULING

e Schedule the exhibit with the Assistant Director. At this time, the dates and times
for installing the exhibit and the reception (if any) will be set. Most exhibits are
shown for four weeks. Once dates and times have been agreed upon, please
adhere to them. If you arrive after your scheduled installation date, you will have
to work around other activities scheduled in the Meeting Room. Similarly, if you
do not remove your artwork on time, Library staff will have to take your works
down to make way for the next show. The Library does not have space to store
work and therefore cannot guarantee their safety. If staff must remove artwork, a
$100 fee will be charged.

e Similarly, times of day are important. The Library may not be able to make the
building available to you outside its regular hours of operation.

EXHIBITION FEE AND COMMISSIONS
e The Library charges a fee of $100 per exhibition. The fee is due on the
installation date. It is payable by cash, check, or credit card. Please make checks
payable to Rye Free Reading Room.
e The Library receives a 20% commission on any sales. The exhibit fee will be
credited towards any commissions due.

HANGING
e You can bring your works up from the parking lot in the elevator. If you have
packing containers, the Library may be able to store them during the show. When
you take down your exhibit, you need to remove your works.
e The Library will furnish ladders, and rods with hooks to suspend the pictures. You
must strictly adhere to the rules about hanging:
*You must use the gallery rods and hooks furnished by the Library, and no
other rods, hooks, hardware, etc.
*You may not use nails, hooks, or tape of any kind or adhere anything on any of
the walls, woodwork or plaster surfaces.

26

1061 Boston Post Road, Rye, NY 10580 | 914-967-0480 | www.ryelibrary.org



) Rve F «Library staff schedules do not permit assistance in hanging works or in any
‘ Rggdigege other part of the show. Please bring adequate help with you.
Room

RECEPTION
e You are welcome to have an opening or closing reception. The community room
kitchen has limited refrigerator (no freezer) space should you wish to bring
things a day or two in advance to chill. The kitchen also contains a sink and a
microwave. You are responsible for cleaning up after your reception. If the space
is not cleaned, a $100 cleaning fee will be charged.

PUBLICITY

e The Library’s publicist will send press releases announcing exhibitions to local
newspapers. Your contact information may be provided to publicity outlets upon
their request. A listing of the exhibit and opening reception will be included on the
Library’s website and, time and space permitting, in the Library’s newsletter. In
order for this to happen, you must provide the title and description of your show,
information about the reception, biographical data and digital photographs of 1
or 2 works included in the show to the Library at the time the contract is returned.

INVITATIONS
e If you want to send invitations to your exhibit, the responsibility for providing and
sending invitations, including printing and postage costs, is yours. Please contact
the post office for information on bulk mailing.

INSURANCE
e The library requires that a list of the pieces exhibited along with their value be
submitted immediately after you hang your exhibit. You are responsible for
insurance coverage for your art while it is in transit. Library insurance covers
exhibitions up to a maximum value of $10,000.

SALES
e Please provide the Library with a list of artworks and their prices. The Library
staff will put prospective purchasers in direct contact with you. At the conclusion
of your show, please remit a 20% commission to the Library on any sales.

27

1061 Boston Post Road, Rye, NY 10580 | 914-967-0480 | www.ryelibrary.org



‘ Rye Free
Reading
Room

Mission Moments

Summer Reading is starting! Sign up at www.ryelibrary.org/summer. Start logging
books June 14" and record your minutes read to earn prizes.

Notable Activities

Thursday, June 12 at 3 pm — Read in Rye : Kostya Kennedy

SPYRE and the Rye Free Reading Room welcome bestselling author and journalist Kostya
Kennedy for an examination of the truth and legend of Paul Revere's midnight ride. From diaries,
archives, and letters, Kennedy reveals the story behind Paul Revere's most famous ride, and the
patriots and challenges that shaped a pivotal night in April 1775.

Tuesday, June 24th at 7:00 pm — Meet the artist : Angelica Daas

Creator of Humanae, a photographic project that invites invite viewers to recognize the
similarity of humans regardless of individual differences, Angelica Daas leads a
conversation about moving beyond white red black or yellow skin colors to the beauty
of human skin in every color.

Saturday, June 28 at 12 pm - The Bias Inside Us opening reception
Walk through the exhibit, examine the optical illusion puzzles, and join the scavenger
hunt included on the installation panels

Thursdays at 4 pm, starting July 10 — Unplug and Read
A fun family read-together time — we provide the snacks, spaces, and books, you bring
the family for quality read together time without screens and other distractions.

Fridays at 10 am, starting July 11 — Beach Storytime
We're back at the pavilion at Rye Town Park with your sea side storytimes!

Booksale Update!

Booksale donations begin September 3!

Friends of the Library Booksale Preview — September 12t at 5:30 pm

Booksale — Saturday September 13 from 10 to 4, Sunday, September 14 from 12 to 2.

28

1061 Boston Post Road, Rye, NY 10580 | 914-967-0480 | www.ryelibrary.org


http://www.ryelibrary.org/summer

